
Published and despatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk on Tuesday, 10 March 2020. 
 01476 406080

Karen Bradford, Chief Executive
www.southkesteven.gov.uk 

    

Wednesday, 18 March 2020 at 10.00 am
Witham Room - South Kesteven House, St. Peter's Hill, 

Grantham. NG31 6PZ

Committee 
Members:

Councillor Jacky Smith (Chairman)
Councillor Annie Mason (Vice-Chairman)

Councillor Kelham Cooke, Councillor Barry Dobson, Councillor Anna Kelly, Councillor 
Adam Stokes and Councillor Paul Wood

Agenda
1.  Membership

The Committee to be notified of any substitute members.

2.  Apologies for absence

3.  Disclosure of interests
Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at the 
meeting.

4.  Minutes of the meeting held on 18 February 2020 (Pages 3 - 7)

5.  Gender Pay Gap
Report of the Leader of the Council which provides the Gender Pay Gap 
position for 2018/19 and seeks feedback from the Committee in relation to 
improving gender equality

(Pages 9 - 22)

Employment 
Committee

mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


6.  Sickness absence statistics and analysis
Report of the Leader of the Council which provides a review of absence 
statistics at South Kesteven District Council with commentary for the period of 
1 April 2019 to 31 December 2019

(Pages 23 - 32)

7.  Apprenticeships at South Kesteven District Council
Report of the Leader of the Council which considers the role of apprenticeships 
at South Kesteven District Council

(Pages 33 - 37)

8.  Human Resources and Organisational Development Update
Report of the Leader of the Council which provides an overview of the current 
work programme for the Human Resources and Organisational Development 
and Change Teams

(Pages 39 - 52)

9.  Committee Workplan
To review the Committee’s Workplan 2020-21

(Pages 53 - 55)

10.  Any other business, which the Chairman, by reason of special 
circumstances, decides is urgent



Minutes
Employment Committee
Tuesday, 18 February 2020

Committee members present

Councillor Ashley Baxter
Councillor Kelham Cooke
Councillor Annie Mason (Vice-Chairman)

Councillor Jacky Smith (Chairman)
Councillor Adam Stokes
Councillor Paul Wood

Officers Other Members

Interim Chief Executive (Paul Thomas)
Strategic Director, Transformation and 
Change (Lee Sirdifield)
Head of Organisational Development 
(Elaine Pepper) 
Senior Human Resources Officer (Jane 
Jenkinson)
Head of Governance (Jo Toomey)

Councillor Robert Reid

35. Membership

The Committee was notified that Councillor Baxter would be substituting for Councillor 
Kelly for this meeting only.

36. Apologies for absence

An apology for absence was received from Councillor Dobson. 

37. Disclosure of interests

No interests were disclosed.

38. Minutes of the meeting held on 4 December 2019

The minutes of the meeting held on 4 December 2019 were agreed as a correct record 
of the decisions taken. 

3

Agenda Item 4



39. Minutes of the meeting held on 8 January 2020

The minutes of the meeting held on 8 January 2020 were agreed as a correct record 
subject to the following amendment to the Committee’s resolution (adding those words 
that are underlined):

It was proposed, seconded and AGREED:

That the preferred candidate for the role of Chief Executive was Karen Bradford and 
that a recommendation be made to Council that the preferred candidate, Karen 
Bradford, be appointed to the role of permanent Chief Executive, Head of Paid Service, 
Returning Officer and Electoral Registration Officer. 

40. Pay Policy Statement

The report of the Leader of the Council on the draft Pay Policy Statement 2020/21 was 
presented to the Committee. Members were advised that the Council was required to 
produce an annual Pay Policy Statement through provisions in the Localism Act 2011. 
There were a number of areas that the Council was required to include in its Pay Policy 
Statement, including: remuneration of chief officers, remuneration of the lowest paid 
employees and the relationship between those and the policy for making any 
termination payments to chief officers. 

The Committee was informed that in producing its Pay Policy Statement, the Council 
also included information that was not statutorily required, including: information on pay 
reviews, allowances, payment of apprentices, employee and employer pension 
contributions and a statement on the re-engagement of employees.

The Employment Committee was being asked to consider the draft Pay Policy 
Statement prior to its submission to Council for approval. The document had to be 
approved through a resolution of the authority before 31 March 2020. As soon as 
reasonably practicable following approval, the Council was required to publish its Pay 
Policy Statement, including publishing it on the Council’s website.

The Committee was given an overview of the main changes between the current draft 
and the 2019/20 Pay Policy Statement:

 Chief officer job titles
 Current rates of pay
 Updated information on pension contributions
 Information on the review of pay and reward arrangements which was underway

Members of the Committee were given the opportunity to ask questions and make 
comments on the draft document.

A question was asked about performance related pay; this was not currently being used 
by the Council but formed part of the review of pay and reward arrangements, which 

4



would be brought before the Committee. It was noted that there was some form of 
performance-related pay arrangement within EnvironmentSK.

Questions were raised about the definition of ‘Chief Officer’ within the document, 
querying why Assistant Chief Executives were listed, but not Assistant Directors, who 
sat at a comparable level. Members were advised that the designation was related to 
the reporting line of an individual. The Assistant Chief Executive had been included 
because they reported directly to the Head of Paid Service, whilst Assistant Directors 
reported to a Strategic Director. A request was made that paragraph 9.3 under the 
heading allowances be updated to confirm that a review of arrangements for mileage 
payments would take place in 2020-21; this would form part of the review of pay and 
reward.

Action Point:

 Update paragraph 9.3 to state: “The Council may will review these 
arrangements in 2020-2021 to better support cost effective flexible 
working.”

A suggestion was made that the Pay Policy Statement could include more information 
to make the document more useful. One member had compared the Council’s draft Pay 
Policy Statement with other local authorities, which had provided more information 
about the duties undertaken by chief officers; this sat alongside payscale information. 
This suggestion received the support of members of the Committee. Some questions 
were raised about those officers who were listed within the Pay Policy Statement; this 
was again due to lines of reporting.

Action Point:

 When the next Pay Policy Statement is produced, additional information 
should be provided around the duties of Chief Officers

Discussion turned to the national living wage and the national minimum wage. The 
Committee was informed that the national minimum wage for people aged 25 and over 
was the same as the national living wage (£8.21). Within the national minimum wage 
there were additional bands for workers under 18, aged between 18 and 20, and 21 and 
24. The values referred to within the Pay Policy Statement related to 2020; the rates for 
2021 had yet to be announced by Government.

Action Point:

 To add a line within the Pay Policy Statement to clarify the terms national 
minimum wage and national living wage and to set out the value of the 
national living wage

Members noted that there was also a separate minimum wage for apprentices and a 
question was raised about how the Council remunerated individuals who were taking up 
apprenticeships. The Committee was advised that there were introductory apprentices 

5



who were paid the national minimum wage for their age band. There were also 
professional apprentices where the individual was paid the appropriate rate for the role 
that they were undertaking. Members asked what the cost implication would be of 
paying all apprentices within the organisation who were currently earning the national 
minimum wage for their age band the national living wage; this was identified as a way 
to help apprentices feel more positive and loyal towards their employer. The financial 
impact would depend where the apprentice was working and where they fell in relation 
to relevant payscales.

Action Point:

 Identify cost implications of paying all apprentices currently receiving the 
national minimum wage for their age band the national living wage

A question was raised about the requirements to publish salary information for the Chief 
Executive and senior officers. This information was published within the transparency 
section of the Council’s website, setting out the relevant salary ranges for those posts.

There was some interest in whether the Council’s companies had their own Pay Policy 
Statements and how closely they resembled the Council’s own Pay Policy Statement. It 
was also suggested that there should be transparency around the companies’ pay 
policy and a request was made that each of the Council’s companies present its pay 
policy to the Companies Committee.

Action Point:

 Recommends that the Companies Committee looks at the pay policy for all 
of the Council’s companies 

A request was made that wherever a report to the Committee referred to a particular HR 
policy, that a copy of that policy should be attached as an appendix. In this instance, the 
Committee was interested in the secondment policy.

Action Point:

 To include a copy of the Council’s secondment policy as an appendix to 
the Pay Policy Statement report

It was proposed, seconded and AGREED:

That the draft Pay Policy Statement 2020/21 be approved for submission to 
Council and recommended for adoption subject to the amendments noted above.

41. Work Programme

The Committee was advised that HR officers had met with the Chairman to discuss 
what the Committee would like to see on its agenda and those items were captured in 
the circulated work programme. Items for the Committee meeting in March 2020 were:

6



 Gender pay gap report and an update on the action plan
 Sickness statistics and managing attendance (including mental health)
 Apprenticeship update including detailed examples and examples of people 

working for the authority who had been on apprenticeship schemes
 Key items on the human resources work programme: induction, recruitment, 

wellbeing, learning and development, skills, talent, update on engagement and 
pay and reward

The Committee was advised that it would be able to pick items from the human 
resources work programme on which it would like further information; this would then be 
used to inform the development of the work programme for the 2020/21 municipal year 
in addition to those items on which it already received quarterly reports.

Members noted that an additional item needed to be added to the work programme, 
which was the restructure of the Council’s management team. Members were informed 
that this review would be undertaken within the first three months of the arrival of the 
new Chief Executive. 

A member referred to the staff survey that had taken place previously and asked when 
the next survey, which had been promised in the new year, would be available. The 
Committee was advised that the next staff survey would be undertaken within the first 
three months of the arrival of the new Chief Executive. A commitment was made that 
the surveys would continue to be undertaken annually. The staff survey was captured 
under the ‘engagement’ item within the Committee’s work programme. A request was 
made for the final details of the previous employee survey that had been undertaken.

Committee members noted the contents of the work programme.

42. Any other business, which the Chairman, by reason of special 
circumstances, decides is urgent

The Chairman asked for the Committee’s consent to change the date of its next meeting 
from Wednesday 11 March 2020 to Wednesday 18 March 2020 to enable the Cabinet 
Member with responsibility for HR to attend the meeting. It was proposed, seconded 
and agreed that the meeting should now take place at 10am on Wednesday 18 March 
2020.

43. Close of meeting

The meeting was closed at 10:35am.

7



This page is intentionally left blank



Employment Committee
18 March 2020

Report of: Councillor Kelham Cooke

The Leader of the Council

        

Gender Pay Gap
This report provides Employment Committee with the Gender Pay Gap position for 2018/19 and 
seeks feedback from the Committee in relation to improving gender equality.

Report Author

Elaine Pepper, Head of Organisational Development

01476 406132

e.pepper@southkesteven.gov.uk

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards:

Administrative Administrative All Wards

Reviewed by: Lee Sirdifield, Strategic Director for Transformation 
and Change 18 February 2020

Approved by: Paul Thomas, Interim Chief Executive 24 February 2020

Signed off by: Councillor Kelham Cooke, The Leader of the Council 27 February 2020

Recommendations to the decision makers

1. That the Employment Committee notes the outcomes of the 2018/2019 Gender Pay 
Gap Reporting.

2. That the Employment Committee reviews and provides feedback on the action plan for 
addressing the issues and improving gender equality within South Kesteven District 
Council.

9

Agenda Item 5

mailto:e.pepper@southkesteven.gov.uk


1 The Background to the Report
1.1 Under the Equality Act 2010 (Gender Pay Gap Information) Regulations 2017, the Council 

is required by law to publish an annual gender pay gap report.  The information contained 
within this report is for the snapshot date of 31 March 2019.

1.2 The gender pay gap shows the difference between the average (mean or median) 
earnings of men and women.  This is expressed as a percentage of men’s earnings, for 
example in the format: ‘women earn 15% less than men’.  If used to its full potential, 
gender pay gap reporting is a valuable tool for assessing levels of equality in the 
workplace; female and male participation; and how effectively talent is being maximised.

1.3 The gender pay gap varies by occupation, age group and even work patterns.  The tables 
below capture the snapshot data for the last three years, since the requirement for 
publishing the data began in 2017. A series of summary tables are shown as Appendix 1.

1.4 Summary of Data for South Kesteven District Council 2019

 The mean gender pay gap 4.44%

 The median gender pay gap 9.95%

 The mean gender bonus gap N/A

 The median gender bonus gap N/A

 The proportion of male employees in South Kesteven 
District Council receiving a bonus is

N/A

 And the proportion of female employees receiving a 
bonus is

N/A

1.5  In terms of hourly rates this equates to:

Male Female Difference
Standard mean 
hourly rate £12.96 £12.39 £0.57
Standard median 
hourly rate £12.05 £10.85 £1.20

1.6 Pay Quartiles by Gender

Pay quartiles by gender
Band Males Females Description
A 62% 38% Includes all employees whose standard hourly rate 

places them in the lowest quartile (lowest paid)
B 43% 57% Includes all employees whose standard hourly rate 

places them above the lower quartile
C 55% 45% Includes all employees whose standard hourly rate 

places them below the upper quartile
D 51% 49% Includes all employees whose standard hourly rate 

places them in the top quartile (highest paid)

10



1.7 Summary of Data for South Kesteven District Council 2018

 The mean gender pay gap 6.2%

 The median gender pay gap 11.7%

 The mean gender bonus gap N/A

 The median gender bonus gap N/A

 The proportion of male employees in South Kesteven 
District Council receiving a bonus is

N/A

 And the proportion of female employees receiving a 
bonus is

N/A

1.8     In terms of hourly rates this equates to:

Male Female Difference
Standard mean 
hourly rate £12.41 £11.64 £0.77
Standard median 
hourly rate £10.64 £9.39 £1.25

1.9    Pay Quartiles by Gender

Pay quartiles by gender
Band Males Females Description
A 31% 69% Includes all employees whose standard hourly rate 

places them in the lowest quartile (lowest paid)
B 57% 43% Includes all employees whose standard hourly rate 

places them above the lower quartile
C 68% 32% Includes all employees whose standard hourly rate 

places them below the upper quartile
D 54% 46% Includes all employees whose standard hourly rate 

places them in the top quartile (highest paid)

1.10 Summary of Data for South Kesteven District Council 2017

 The mean gender pay gap 3.7%

 The median gender pay gap 20%

 The mean gender bonus gap N/A

 The median gender bonus gap N/A

 The proportion of male employees in South Kesteven 
District Council receiving a bonus is

N/A

11



 And the proportion of female employees receiving a 
bonus is

N/A

1.11 In terms of hourly rates this equates to:

Male Female Difference
Standard mean 
hourly rate £12.11 £11.66 £0.45
Standard median 
hourly rate £11.69 £9.29 £2.40

1.12 Pay Quartiles by Gender

Pay quartiles by gender
Band Males Females Description
A 59% 41% Includes all employees whose standard hourly rate 

places them in the lowest quartile (lowest paid)
B 37% 63% Includes all employees whose standard hourly rate 

places them above the lower quartile
C 54% 46% Includes all employees whose standard hourly rate 

places them below the upper quartile
D 55% 45% Includes all employees whose standard hourly rate 

places them in the top quartile (highest paid)

1.13 The mean is defined as the average of the figures and is calculated by adding up all the 
figures and dividing by the number of staff.  The median is defined as the salary that lies at 
the midpoint and is calculated by ordering all salaries from highest to lowest and the 
median is the central figure.  The quartile information is calculated by listing all salaries from 
highest to lowest and then splitting that information into four equal quarters to determine the 
percentage of male/female employees in each quartile.

1.14 All the figures set out above have been calculated using the standard methodologies used 
in the Equality Act 2010 (Gender Pay Gap Information) Regulations 2017.
Under the law, men and women must receive equal pay for:

 The same or broadly similar work

 Work rated as equivalent under a job evaluation scheme or

 Work of equal value.
1.15 The Council is committed to the principle of equal opportunities and equal treatment for all 

employees, and it has a clear policy of paying employees equally for the same or equivalent 
work, regardless of their sex (or any other protected characteristic as set out in the Equality 
Act 2010).  As such, it

 Carries out pay and benefits audits at regular intervals

 Evaluates job roles and pay grades as necessary to ensure a fair structure.

 Is completing review of Pay and Rewards through the Institute of Employment 
Studies (IES), the results of which will be available shortly.

12



1.16 The Council is therefore confident that its gender pay gap does not result from paying men 
and women differently for the same or equivalent work.

1.17 Rather, the gender pay gap is the result of the roles in which men and women work within 
the organisation and the salaries that these roles attract.  However, there is a need to look 
beyond the data to identify any issues, influences and practices that determine our gender 
pay gap.

1.18 Small changes can make a difference.  The fact that we already have established 
processes and polices that contribute to the equality of the organisation, officers already 
have access to flexible working and that we already offer shared parental leave must not be 
overlooked.  Therefore, an action plan was produced to complement, build and strengthen 
initiatives already in place. An updated plan is attached to this report at Appendix 2.

1.19 The Gender Pay Report for South Kesteven District Council must be published on the 
government website by 31 March 2020.

2 Financial Implications 
2.1 There are no specific financial implications arising from this report.  The financial 

considerations of the Council’s employment arrangements are included in the budget 
framework.
Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance

3 Legal and Governance Implications 
3.1 The report sets out the data that must by law be published. The Council has reduced the 

gender pay gap from 2018 to 2019. The anomalies between the pay for men and women 
could benefit from further analysis as the median pay figures suggest that overall men 
occupy higher paid roles than women in the workforce.
Legal Implications reviewed by: Shahin Ismail, Director of Law and Governance

4 Equality and Safeguarding Implications 
4.1 As covered in the report, delivery of the Gender Pay Gap Action Plan will build on the work 

already undertaken and will enhance the reputation of the Council as an Equal 
Opportunities Employer. It is recognised that the Gender Pay Gap report focusses on the 
protected characteristic of gender and the action plan considers equality implications in 
detail.

5 Risk and Mitigation
5.1 Not Applicable

6 Community Safety Implications 
6.1 The are no community safety implications relating to this report.

7 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 
Council’s declaration of a ‘climate emergency’?

7.1 The recommendations in this report have no carbon impact. 

8 Background Papers
8.1 Not Applicable

9 Appendices
9.1 Appendix 1 – Summary Tables

13



9.2 Appendix 2 - Gender Pay Gap Action Plan

Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required)

Not applicable

Previously Considered by: Employment 
Committee

17 February 2020

Report Timeline: 

Final Decision date  18 March 2020

14



Appendix 1 : Pay Gap Comparison Tables – 2017-2019

Summary Data 2017 - 2019

2019 2018 2017

 The mean gender pay gap 4.44% 6.2% 3.7%

 The median gender pay gap 9.95% 11.7% 20%

 The mean gender bonus gap N/A N/A N/A

 The median gender bonus gap N/A N/A N/A

 The proportion of male employees in 
South Kesteven District Council 
receiving a bonus is

N/A N/A N/A

 And the proportion of female 
employees receiving a bonus is

N/A N/A N/A

Hourly Rates 2017 - 2019

2019 2018 2017

M
al

e

Fe
m

al
e

D
iff

er
en

ce

M
al

e

Fe
m

al
e

D
iff

er
en

ce

M
al

e

Fe
m

al
e

D
iff

er
en

ce
Standard 
mean 
hourly 
rate

£12.96 £12.39 £0.57 £12.41 £11.64 £0.77 £12.11 £11.66 £0.45

Standard 
median 
hourly 
rate

£12.05 £10.85 £1.20 £10.64 £9.39 £1.25 £11.69 £9.29 £2.40

15



Pay Quartiles by Gender 2017 - 2019

Pay quartiles by gender
2019 2018 2017 Description

Band Males Females Males Females Males Females
A 62% 38% 31% 69% 59% 41% Includes all employees whose 

standard hourly rate places them 
in the lowest quartile (lowest 
paid)

B 43% 57% 57% 43% 37% 63% Includes all employees whose 
standard hourly rate places them 
above the lower quartile

C 55% 45% 68% 32% 54% 46% Includes all employees whose 
standard hourly rate place them 
below the upper quartile

D 51% 49% 54% 46% 55% 45% Includes all employees whose 
standard hourly rate places them 
in the top quartile (highest paid)

16



Gender Pay Gap Action Plan
Attract – Retain – Develop 

Attract                                                                                                                                                                                         Recruitment and Selection
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Action Purpose Detail To commence 

from
Outcome

Assign a GPG Lead 
from within the 
Management Team 
to lead on the 
delivery of the 
action plan. 

Responsibility for 
delivery – GPG Lead

To lead on the 
implementation of 
the GPG Action 
Plan. 

The Head of Organisational Development will be responsible 
for and lead on the GPG Action Plan.  A Focus and Delivery 
Group will be formed to help support the delivery of the plan 
across the organisation.

The Chief Executive at this time asked for interested 
parties and met with staff and although feedback from 
staff was given there was very little appetite from staff to 
form a focus group.  The work of this plan has therefore 
been embedded into the overall HR Work Plan.

Following the publication of the 2019 Gender Pay Gap, 
the GPG Lead will encourage a small team of individuals 
to come together to work on key initiatives that form part 
of this action plan.

Focus group to 
be formed April 
2019

April 2020

Gender Pay Gap 
will be reduced and 
gender equality will 
be improved within 
the organisation.

Research GPG 
Reports/Action 
Plans from other 
organisations

Responsibility for 
delivery – GPG Lead 
with GPG Focus 
Group

Compare the results 
of SKDC to other 
similar 
organisations, 
benchmarking with 
others will help 
define if SKDC 
gender pay gap is 
cause for concern.

 Compare the results of SKDC with other organisations
 Gain ideas and best practice from the action planning of 

others.

A review of the last 3 years of data will take place on the 
1st April 2020, previous data has shown that similar 
district councils have similar issues in terms of services 
provided etc.

April 2020

Work to begin 
April 2020

Benchmarking 
information will be 
used to address 
any SKDC issues.

17

A
ppendix 2



Job Adverts/Job 
Descriptions

Responsibility for 
delivery – GPG Lead 
with GPG Focus 
Group

To ensure we 
encourage 
applicants who 
cannot work full-time 
or within standard 
“normal” office hours 
or settings.

Advertise our commitment to workplace flexibility in all 
recruitment processes highlighting opportunities for variations 
on full-time working hours.

Agile and home working opportunities to suit the needs of the 
individual and the workplace should be promoted in line with 
the key values and behaviours set out in our Corporate 
Strategy.

Ensure capability requirements are clear and that all noted 
essential skills are necessary and not just desirable allowing 
for technical skills to be learnt after recruitment.  Research 
shows that women are unlikely to apply for a position unless 
they meet 100% of the requirements, whilst men will apply if 
they meet 60% of the requirements.

All new Job Descriptions include flexibility in terms of 
working hours but also with regard to our values and 
behaviours.  We will capture this further when we hold 
the Line Managers workshops, and also we are 
undertaking a review of recruitment and selection 
processes and this will be included.  However, we still 
need to continue to develop and educate line managers.

April 2019

Ongoing 
updating of Job 
Descriptions 
2020

Enhances the 
Authority’s 
reputation for 
inclusivity.

Introduce a 
programme to 
recruit returners to 
employment

Responsibility for 
delivery – GPG Lead 
with GPG Focus 
Group

To provide 
opportunities to 
women that have 
been out of 
employment for an 
extended period of 
time

Returners are people who have taken a career break of a 
year or more for caring or other reasons and who are either 
not currently employed or are working in roles for which they 
are over-qualified.

Developing a returner programme will give the Authority 
access to a pool of experienced people who either already 
have skills we need or who are easily able to acquire them.  
This may require the re-evaluation of some roles to address 
the viability of offering part-time/flexible opportunities.

June 2020 Provide a 
programme to 
support, encourage 
and develop 
returners and 
enhance the 
reputation of the 
Council

18



The HR Team are currently undertaking a review of the 
processes and procedures in relation to Recruitment and 
Selection, ensuring that we promote all the initiates, 
policy and procedure that we currently have within the 
Council.  As part of this review the GPG focus group will 
be asked to assist with this key project.

To begin April 
2020

Introduce diverse 
recruitment panels

Responsibility for 
delivery – GPG Lead 
with GPG Focus 
Group

To reduce any 
potential of bias in 
the evaluation of 
candidates during 
the interview 
process.

All recruitment panels should have a least one “trained” 
member on the panel of 3 people and male/female 
representation where possible,

Line management training is taking place in 
February/March 2020, and future training will be 
organised as and when required, as informed by HR 
Business Partner meetings.

April 2019

Feb 2020/ 
ongoing

Enhance the 
Authority’s 
reputation for 
inclusivity 

19



Retain                                                                                                                                                                                                      Existing Workforce
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           
Action Purpose Detail To commence 

from
Outcome

To provide data on 
barriers to 
progression
To provide an 
understanding of an 
individual’s 
perception of their 
own abilities 
(strengths and 
weaknesses)
To identify areas in 
which people excel 
and could pass on 
their skills, 
knowledge etc to 
others

Introduce 
Performance Self 
Assessments

Responsibility for 
delivery
GDP Lead and GDP 
Focus Group

To identify 
development needs

There is some evidence that women underestimate their 
abilities or are more conservative in their assessment of their 
abilities than men are.

Self-assessment allows people to review their own 
performance and abilities.  This performance review would 
form part of the appraisal process and include reviews by the 
individual’s manager and peers to give a rounded view.  As 
staff are encouraged more and more to work autonomously 
we must ensure they have the confidence to fulfil their role

We are currently developing a new Performance 
Management process, which will introduce a 
“performance model” as part of the “check in” process, 
so all staff will have the opportunity to discuss their 
strengths and any development opportunities with their 
immediate Line Manager.  (Training will be provided to all 
Line Managers on performance management).

June 2019

Begins April 
2020/ongoing

Staff better 
engaged in the 
process of 
reviewing 
performance and 
setting job and 
career goals as 
they acquire an 
accurate view of 
how the work they 
do impacts on the 
workplace

Flexible Working for 
all

Responsibility for 
delivery
GPG Lead and GDP 
Focus Group

To enable a means 
of flexible working 
across SKDC that is 
open to all (subject 
to actual business 
need)

Whilst there are some areas where flexible working is 
(because of business need) restricted, barriers to a flexible 
approach need to be removed. A corporate approach which 
encourages both women and men to work flexibly will ensure 
the programme is administered in an equitable manner. 
Senior managers should role model working flexibly.

Flexible working is already in place and has been for a 
number of years. Ongoing action is however required to 
further promote flexible working across the Authority to help 
dispel the impression (of some) that presence equals worth 
within the organisation.

Ongoing SKDC is seen as a 
fair and flexible 
employer that 
values and 
empowers its staff.  
Creates a positive 
employer brand for 
future job 
applicants and 
helps retain staff 
whose personal 

20



As an organisation we continue to promote flexibility and 
flexible working, in the past, staff have commented on 
inconsistency in some areas, although we appreciate that 
not all areas can have the same flexibility due to service 
provision, we continue to discuss with managers, 
opportunities and ways to enable flexibility and will be 
undertaking a staff survey throughout March/April to gain 
further feedback from staff on the subject.

March 2020 and 
ongoing

circumstances 
have changed

Promote the 
opportunity for 
shared parental 
leave

Responsibility for 
delivery
HR in collaboration 
with the 
Communications 
Team

To reduce the 
gender pay gap that 
may be experienced 
by women who 
return to the work 
environment after 
having children

Research shows that the gender pay gap is significantly 
greater in some organisations after women have children.  
This gap can be reduced through advocating shared parental 
leave.

Shared parental leave policy already in place. Ongoing action 
is required to further promote the opportunity of shared 
parental leave

Promotion of Parental Leave has taken place and we 
continue to do so, however, in general the uptake is low.

Ongoing

Ongoing

Improvement in the 
diversity and skill 
within the 
workplace and a 
reduction in the 
gender pay gap

21



Develop                                                                                                                                                                                       Training and Development 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     
Action Purpose Detail To commence 

from
Outcomes

First Time Line 
Managers 
Programme

Responsibility for 
delivery
Organisational 
Development and 
Change, working with 
HR

To provide training 
to staff in leadership 
positions and to 
those who aspire to 
be in leadership 
positions

The First Time Line Managers Programme has been 
developed and will be delivered in “bite size” sessions 
throughout April/May.  Topics available to those on this 
programme will include:

 Recruitment and Selection
 Absence management
 Performance Management
 Communications
 Disciplinary/Redundancy
 Flexible Working
 Itrent (HR System)

The next workshops for first time managers/refreshers 
for current managers will take place February/March 
2020.

April 2019

Begins Feb 2020 
and ongoing

Appropriately 
trained officers who 
understand and are 
able to utilise 
management tools 
available

Introduce mandatory 
recruitment and 
selection training 

Responsibility for 
delivery - GPG Lead 
with GPG Focus 
Group

To ensure 
consistency in the 
recruitment and 
selection of potential 
employees. To 
ensure equality 
throughout the 
process

Learning and development opportunity for all staff involved in 
the recruitment and selection process.  Training to include 
modules on:

 Recruitment and Selection Policy and Procedures
 Attracting/Branding/Targeting
 Interview techniques
 Unconscious Bias (First Impressions) awareness.

Update – training on recruitment and selection has taken 
place and we have 3 more sessions during Feb and 
March as part of the Line Management Development 
Workshops.  Business Partner meetings with Senior HR 
Officers will take place during 2020 and any further 
learning and development requirements will be picked up 
at these meetings.

Summer 2019
and ongoing

Summer 2020 
and ongoing

Trained recruitment 
panels able to 
utilise a number of 
techniques to 
identify the 
strengths of 
candidates.

22



Employment Committee
18 March 2020

Report of: Councillor Kelham Cooke

The Leader of the Council

        

Sickness absence statistics and analysis
This report provides a review of absence statistics at South Kesteven District Council with 
commentary for the period of 1 April 2019 to 31 December 2019.

Report Author

Jane Jenkinson, Senior HR Officer

 01476 406137

 j.jenkinson@southkesteven.gov.uk

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards:

Administrative Administrative All Wards

Reviewed by: Elaine Pepper, Head of Organisational Development 14 February 2020

Approved by: Lee Sirdifield, Strategic Director for Transformation 
and Change 14 February 2020

Signed off by: Councillor Kelham Cooke, The Leader of the Council 27 February 2020

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s)

1. That the Employment Committee notes the absence statistics for South Kesteven 
District Council for the period April to December 2019.

23

Agenda Item 6

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
mailto:j.jenkinson@southkesteven.gov.uk


1 The Background to the Report
1.1 This report provides sickness absence statistics for the organisation as a whole and a 

breakdown on both the causes of absence and individual departments’ performance for 
Q1&2 April to September 2019 and Q3 October to December 2019.

1.2 The report provides details of the costs of absence and the completion rate of return to 
work interviews.  Information is also provided on mental health related absence including 
usage and feedback from Mental Health First Aiders.

Overall Sickness Absence rates.
1.3 Sickness Absence at South Kesteven District Council (SKDC) is measured using the 

standard calculation utilised by local authorities - the average number of days absent per 
person at the Council. The formula for this calculation is to divide the full-time equivalent 
sickness hours by the full-time equivalent headcount.

1.4 The average number of days absent due to sickness per employee (both long and short 
term absence) at SKDC for the period April to December 2019 year to date is 9 days.  For 
comparison the average number of days lost per employee due to sickness was 10 for the 
period April 2018 to March 2019.

1.5 In 2018 -19 the average number of days lost per employee for the full year due to sickness 
was 10 days. The Local Government Association states that the average number of days 
lost due to sickness per employee in 2016-17 was 8.9.

Causes of Sickness Absence
Table 1: Absence by Category (Short Term)

Q1&2 Q3

Absence Description % of absence against 
total absence

% of absence against 
total absence

Stress-Depression-Mental Health 21.1 8.4

Musculo-skeletal 19.0 12.8

Cold and flu 14.3 38.3

Stomach/liver/kidney/digestion 11.4 10.2

Other 8.7 9.7

Back & neck 7.5 3.2

1.6 82% of short-term sickness absence are linked to six issues. Table 1 shows these causes 
and provides a percentage that compares the absence hours against the overall number 
of days lost due to absences.

1.7 There has been a significant reduction in short-term mental health related absence and a 
reduction in musculo-skeletal absence in Quarter 3.  However, there has been a 
considerable increase in absence for colds and flu in Quarter 3.  It has previously been 
highlighted that cold and flu related absence may increase during the winter period.  

1.8 Short term absence, (which is classified as any absence under four weeks in length) 
accounts for 26% of absences in Quarter 3 and 28.7% for 2019-20 YTD.  This is a 

24



decrease on the 2018-19 figure of 32%.  This is a positive trend as short-term absence is 
considered to have a more disruptive impact on day to day service delivery.

Table 2: Absence by Category (Long Term)
Q1&2 Q3

Absence Description % of absence against 
long term absence total

% of absence against 
long term absence 

total

Stress-Depression-Mental 
Health

35% 34%

Musculo-skeletal total 32% 28%

Back & neck 24% 17%

1.9 Similar to Quarters 1 and 2 there were 41 long term absences (classified as any absence 
over four weeks in length) in Quarter 3.  20 of these returned to work during the period.  
Case management of long-term absence has resulted in 4 employees leaving the 
Council’s employment and a further 2 due to leave in the coming weeks. 

1.10 Long term absentees are met with every four weeks by their line manager to discuss their 
absence and to agree return to work plans.  Managers are supported by the Human 
Resources department and occupational health providers during this process.

1.11 90% of long- term absences are related to three causes.  Table 2 shows these causes and 
provides a percentage that compares the long-term absence hours against the overall 
number of hours lost due to absences over four weeks in length.

Directorate and departmental breakdown.
Table 3: Time Lost by Directorate

Q1&2 Q3

Directorate % of absence 
against 

absence total

Ave. absence 
days per 
employee

% of absence 
against 

absence total

Ave. absence 
days per 
employee

Commercial and 
Operational

42% 7 39% 3.7

Growth 34% 6 45% 4.7

Resources 22% 7 9% 2.6

Transformation 
and Change

1% 1 7% 2.1

1.12 Table 3 demonstrates by directorate the percentage of hours lost due to sickness 
compared to the overall number of absent hours and the average number of days lost due 
to sickness per employee in the area. 

1.13 The increase in the level of absence in the Growth directorate is due to a number of long- 
term absences.  The increase in the level of absence in Transformation and Change is 

25



due to changes in reporting structures within the Customer Services and IT departments 
moving from the Resources directorate to Transformation and Change. 

Table 4: Time Lost by Department
Department Q1&2 % of absence against 

absence total
Ave. absence days 

per employee

Corporate Operations 4% 19

ICT 6% 13

Licensing 1% 13

Customer Services 8% 13

Street Scene 34% 8

Improvement and Repairs 18% 8

Housing 10% 8

Building Control 4% 7

Environmental 5% 6

Department Q3 % of absence against 
absence total

Ave. absence days 
per employee

Housing 19% 8

Improvement and Repairs 25% 7

Licensing 1% 6

ICT 3% 5

Street Scene 34% 5

Customer Services 4% 4

Customer Experience 6% 4

1.14 Absence by department can be demonstrated both as a percentage against the overall 
absences and by the average number of days absent per employee. Both figures can be 
influenced by the number of employees within the department.

1.15 Table 4 demonstrates by department the percentage of hours lost due to sickness 
compared to the overall number of absent hours and the average number of days lost due 
to sickness per employee in that area.  The table shows the departments with the highest 
average days per employee. It should be noted that this figure can be inflated by a long-
term absence if it is a small department.

Costs of Absence
1.16 The costs of absence for Quarter 3 have been calculated as approximately £173,000, 

being £125,000 long-term absence and £47,000 short-term absence.  These are indicative 
figures based on the employee’s salary for the time off sick.  The figures do not include 
on-costs or any reductions where the employee is receiving half or no pay or any agency 
costs brought in to offset the absence.

26



Return to Work Interviews
1.17 The rate of completed return to work interviews for Quarter 3 is 95% in comparison to 80% 

for Quarters 1 and 2.  The actual figures are 11 interviews not completed out of a total 
number of absences of 229.  Managers receive automated prompts to complete return to 
work interviews when an employee returns to work.  The HR team has also provided 
additional prompts which has resulted in the improvement in the percentage completed.

Mental Health Related Absence
1.18 In Quarter 3 there has been a slight increase for long-term mental health related absence 

and a significant decrease in short-term mental health related absence.

1.19 Support for mental health related absence is available through an employee assistance 
programme, a number of trained mental health first aiders and stress management 
training for staff.  National mental health awareness initiatives are actively promoted, most 
recently through Time to Talk day and plans are in place for Mental Health Awareness 
week which takes place in May.

1.20 Mental health first aiders (MHFAs) have provided information and feedback on the use of 
their services.  The majority have seen approximately 3 members of staff each in their 
official capacity.  In the main these are self-referrals but there have been some instances 
where line managers have contacted the MHFAs to raise concerns.  Feedback has been 
positive, both from a user and MHFA point view, indicating that the MHFAs and initiatives 
such as the recent Time to Talk day help to raise awareness and encourage people to talk 
and to take positive steps to better their mental health.

Next Steps
1.21 Human Resources will continue to support line managers in reducing both short-term and 

long-term absences.  Existing line managers and future new managers will receive 
refresher training in both absence management and carrying out return to work interviews.

1.22 Human Resources will continue to work with the Organisation Development and Change 
team to streamline and automate processes linked to absence management 

1.23 Human Resources is monitoring and analysing absence statistics on a regular basis.  This 
information feeds into HR business partner meetings with managers resulting in actions 
and updates in respect of absence case management.

2 Financial Implications 
2.1 There is a financial cost to the Council when employees are absent from work as well as 

non-financial costs, so it is important that proactive sickness management is embedded 
and consistently applied across the Council.

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance

3 Legal and Governance Implications 
3.1 There are no specific legal implications arising from this report.

Legal Implications reviewed by: Shahin Ismail, Monitoring Officer

27



4 Equality and Safeguarding Implications 
4.1 Equality and safeguarding implications are considered in HR Policy and the HR 

Handbook. There are no additional equality and safeguarding implications resulting from 
this report.

5 Risk and Mitigation
5.1 There are no risks arising from this report.

6 Community Safety Implications 
6.1 There are no community safety implications relating to this report.

7 Other Implications (where significant) 
7.1 There are no other implications relating to this report

8 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 
Council’s declaration of a ‘climate emergency’?

8.1 The recommendations in this report have no carbon impact. 

9 Background Papers
9.1 Not applicable

10 Appendices
10.1 Appendix 1 – Historic Return to Work Statistics

Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required)

Not applicable

Previously Considered by Employment 
Committee

5 June 2019

Report Timeline: 

Final Decision date  Not applicable

28



APPENDIX TO EMPLOYMENT COMMITTEE REPORT
SICKNESS ABSENCE STATISTICS AND ANALYSIS

% Return to Work Interview Completed

 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
2018-19 No data 48 71 83

2019-20 75 77 95

Data not 
yet 
available

Q1 2018-19

No data available (prior to iTrent 
implementation )

Q2 2018-19

Department
Total 
Absences

RTWs not 
completed

RTWs 
completed

% 
completed

Building Control 4 0 4 100
Customer Services 1 0 1 100
Legal & Democratic 2 0 2 100
Improvement and Repairs 24 7 17 71
Customer Experience 33 12 21 64
ICT 8 4 4 50
Organisational Development 2 1 1 50
Street Scene 67 36 31 46
Development Management 5 3 2 40
Finance 11 7 4 36
Growth 4 3 1 25
Housing 29 22 7 24
Environmental 9 8 1 11
Community Resilience 2 2 0 0
Lightbox 1 1 0 0
Grand Total 202 106 96 48

29

Appendix 1



Q3 2018-19

Department
Total 
Absences

RTWs not 
completed

RTWs 
completed

% 
completed

Corporate Operations 1  1 100
Planning Policy 4 0 4 100
Customer Experience 40 5 35 88
Improvement and Repairs 40 5 35 88
Street Scene 48 9 39 81
Building Control 10 2 8 80
ICT 10 2 8 80
Finance 10 3 7 70
Environmental 6 3 3 50
Legal & Democratic 6 3 3 50
Organisational Development 2 1 1 50
Development Management 13 7 6 46
Housing 25 18 7 28
Cultural Services 5 4 1 20
Licensing 2 2 0 0
Grand Total 222 64 158 71
Q4 2018-19

Department
Total 
Absences

RTWs not 
completed

RTWs 
completed

% RTWs 
completed

Community Resilience 1 0 1 100
Corporate Operations 1 0 1 100
Licensing 4 0 4 100
Lightbox 1 0 1 100
Organisational Development 5 0 5 100
Improvement and Repairs 32 2 30 94
Customer Experience 45 3 42 93
Street Scene 65 6 59 91
Development Management 7 1 6 86
Environmental 8 2 6 75
Finance 4 1 3 75
Housing 29 8 21 72
Building Control 6 2 4 67
Cultural Services 6 3 3 50
Legal & Democratic 4 2 2 50
Repairs 2 1 1 50
ICT 7 4 3 43
Communications 1 1 0 0
Planning Policy 1 1 0 0
Property 1 1 0 0
Grand Total 230 38 192 83

30



Q1 2019-20

Department
Total 
Absences

RTWs not 
completed

RTWs 
completed

% 
completed

Finance 2 0 2 100
Planning Policy 1 0 1 100
Customer Experience 34 2 32 94
Environmental 5 1 4 80
Street Scene 60 14 46 77
Improvement and Repairs 19 5 14 74
Housing 22 6 16 73
ICT 15 5 10 67
Legal & Democratic 3 1 2 67
Building Control 4 2 2 50
Development Management 6 3 3 50
Communications 1 1 0 0
Cultural Services 4 4 0 0
Grand Total 177 44 132 75

Q2 2019-20

Department
Total 
Absences

RTWs not 
completed

RTWs 
completed

% 
Completed

Building Control 7 0 7 100
Community Resilience 1 0 1 100
Finance 1 0 1 100
Licensing 2 0 2 100
OD & Change 3 0 3 100
Growth 1 0 1 100
Street Scene 54 6 48 89
Environmental 7 1 6 86
Customer Experience 27 4 23 85
ICT 8 2 6 75
Development Management 6 2 4 67
Improvement and Repairs 37 13 24 65
Cultural Services 2 1 1 50
Housing 22 11 11 50
Lightbox 1 1 0 0
Grand Total 179 41 138 77

31



Q3 2019-20

Department
Total 
Absences

RTWs not 
completed

RTWs 
completed

% 
Completed

Building Control 11 0 11 100
Commun ications 2 0 2 100
Community Resilience 1 0 1 100
Corporate Operations 1 0 1 100
Cultural Services 4 0 4 100
Customer Experience 36 0 36 100
Customer Services 1 0 1 100
Environmental 6 0 6 100
Finance 3 0 3 100
Housing 30 0 30 100
ICT 13 0 13 100
Law and Governance 3 0 3 100
Licensing 6 0 6 100
OD & Change 9 0 9 100
Planning Policy 1 0 1 100
Street Scene 63 0 63 100
Improvement and Repairs 31 7 24 77
Property 3 1 2 67
Development Management 7 3 4 57
Grand Total 231 11 220 95

Q4 2019-20

Data not yet available

32



Employment Committee
18 March 2020

Report of: Councillor Kelham Cooke

The Leader of the Council

        

Apprenticeships at South Kesteven District Council

This report considers the role of apprenticeships at South Kesteven District Council. 

Report Author

Neil Moverley, Senior HR Officer

 01476 406135

 n.moverley@southkesteven.gov.uk

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards:

Administrative Administrative All Wards

Reviewed by: Elaine Pepper, Head of Organisation Development 14 February 2020

Approved by: Lee Sirdifield, Strategic Director for Transformation 
and Change 19 February 2020

Signed off by: Councillor Kelham Cooke, The Leader of the Council 27 February 2020

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s)

It is requested that the Employment Committee:
1. Endorses the approach to diversify the type of apprenticeships at the Council and the 

greater application of apprenticeships into workforce planning.
2. Provides feedback into the future planning of apprenticeships.
3. Updates the work programme to consider the apprenticeship proposal in more detail.

33

Agenda Item 7

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
mailto:n.moverley@southkesteven.gov.uk


1 The Background to the Report
1.1 There are four principal benefits and purposes to the role of apprenticeships at South 

Kesteven District Council (SKDC).

i) Supporting the Learning and Development budget to increase the capability of 
existing staff.

ii) To be an integral part of workforce planning and to provide succession planning 
for difficult to recruit to areas.

iii) Increasing the capacity of teams to meet objectives and

iv) To build relationships with residents and educational establishments to highlight 
local government careers in South Kesteven.

1.2 Recent government policy on apprenticeships impacts upon SKDC’s use of 
apprenticeships in two ways:

i) Public sector organisations with over 250 employees have been set a target of 
2.3% of their headcount (not full-time equivalents) to be undertaking 
apprenticeships.

This equates to an annual target of 13.5 apprentices at SKDC.

ii) 0.5% of the monthly wage bill minus an annual allowance of £15,000 is 
administered by HMRC and returned to SKDC to spend on formal 
apprenticeship training.

This equates to approximately £52,000 per annum.  This funding can only be 
spent on apprentice training with approved providers, not salaries, learning 
materials or travel.

1.3 In addition to the salaries paid to apprentices as employees, each apprenticeship has a 
different cost, which is funded from the Apprenticeship Levy. Depending on the level and 
duration of the qualification this ranges from a 12-month course at Level 2 (GCSE 
equivalent) costing £2.5k to a 6 year post graduate qualification costing £27k.

Where we have come from.
1.4 SKDC has supported 14 apprentices in 2017/18 and 16 apprentices in 2018/19. 

1.5 Prior to 2017 the majority of apprenticeships were for Customer Service and Business 
Administration at level 2 and 3 (the equivalent of GCSE and A level respectively) and were 
largely employed in Customer Service and Revenues and Benefits.  This is except for 3 
trade apprenticeships at Repairs and Improvements in Bricklaying and for formal 
Electrician training.

1.6 Most of the training for apprenticeships was provided by Grantham College, with whom we 
have built an excellent working relationship.

Current situation.
1.7 16 employees have commenced apprenticeships at the council in 2019/20.

1.8 The Council currently has two apprenticeships being advertised, for a Benefits apprentice 
and IT apprentice.

1.9 The HR and Organisation Development and Change teams have worked with managers 
through business partner meetings and service reviews to identify relevant 

34



apprenticeships in response to the Employee Survey and ongoing workforce succession 
planning. 

1.10 We are utilising apprenticeships to support career development and to train existing staff 
to gain qualifications and experience in roles that are hard to recruit to.

1.11 The following apprenticeships are currently being undertaken by employees at SKDC:

i) Senior Leader Masters Degree Apprenticeship

ii) Chartered Management Degree Apprenticeship

iii) Chartered Town Planning Degree Apprenticeship (x2)

iv) Accountancy / Taxation Professional Degree Apprenticeship

v) Team Leader ILM level 3 diploma (x4)

vi) Customer Service Level 3

vii) Business Administration Level 3

viii) Installation & Maintenance Electrician Level 3

ix) Large Goods Vehicle Driver Level 2 (x3)

x) Business Administration Level 2

1.12 We have expanded the range of the providers engaged to deliver apprenticeships, 
building relationships with: Lincoln University, Sheffield Hallam University, Boston College 
and the Open University, whilst maintaining an excellent relationship with Grantham 
College.

Case Study: Organisation Development and Change Officer
1.13 The officer joined SKDC on a one-year Business Administration Level 2 Apprenticeship as 

a Project and Performance Apprentice on 6 March 2017. He proved himself within the role 
and at the conclusion of the apprenticeship his contract was extended to March 2019.

1.14 As part of the restructure of the Project and Performance Management team into the 
Organisation Development and Change Team he was offered a full-time role with the 
opportunity to take a Team Leader ILM 3 apprenticeship to continue his development.

1.15 He seized this opportunity and has used his training to change his role from supporting to 
leading projects.  To supplement his apprenticeship, learning he has also undertaken 
Lean Six Sigma and Agile training qualifications.

1.16 He continues to grow in his role and his feedback on the apprenticeship training has not 
only helped shape the delivery of the ILM Level 3 apprenticeship but he is also an integral 
part of a project team that is shaping how apprenticeships are developed and delivered at 
SKDC.

Where we are going
1.17 A project group led by the HR and Organisation Development and Change team is 

developing a proposal relating to an apprenticeship programme that will be presented as 
part of the future work programme for Employment Committee.

1.18 The SKDC apprenticeship programme will:

 Cover an apprentice’s first steps into employment

35



 Develop future leaders

 Provide Continuous Professional Development (CPD) opportunities across the 
organisation.  

 Build a strong talent pipeline throughout the organisation

 Create a peer support network that embed the core values of the corporate strategy. 
1.19 To summarise; the proposal could see four apprenticeship pathways being created:

i) Strategic Leadership.

Developing strategic leadership at the council.  In conjunction with Learning and 
Development courses and coaching / mentoring opportunities to provide a 
consistent and challenging approach to leading the organisation.

ii) Operational Leadership.

Supporting new line managers and operational departmental managers to 
develop the key skills needed to lead and to manage change.  

In conjunction with the internal First Line Management training and the external 
course Developing a Management Mindset to provide a consistent and strong 
approach to line management and project leadership.

iii) Technical Qualifications.

A range of qualifications to provide new and existing staff with the skills they 
and the organisation need both now and in the future.

These qualifications range from bricklaying to town planning degrees and IT to 
accountancy.  These apprenticeships will play a key part in developing 
workforce and succession planning at SKDC.

iv) Entry to the organisation.

Apprenticeships will be used as an avenue for top talent in the local community 
to gain a foot in the door at the council, with avenues through business 
administration, customer services and trade apprenticeships being available. 

1.20 Each of the pathways will have a range of apprenticeships at different levels of 
qualification.  A number of apprenticeships have been researched and training providers 
have been initially approached to discuss different delivery options and to assess their 
capabilities.  

1.21 This approach will ensure that SKDC works towards both utilising the Apprenticeship Levy 
in a way that benefits the organisation in meeting the corporate strategy and ensures we 
meet or exceed the target of 13.5 apprentices per year.

2 Financial Implications 
2.1 The council is on target to spend the Apprenticeship Levy within the two year deadline.  If 

commitments were to exceed the available funding central government would fund 90% of 
the additional costs with the remining 10% met from existing budgets.

Financial Implications reviewed by: Alison Hall-Wright, Head of Finance

36



3 Legal and Governance Implications 
3.1 There are no legal implications arising from this report.

Legal Implications reviewed by: Shahin Ismail, Director of Law and Governance

4 Equality and Safeguarding Implications 
4.1 There are two elements to consider regarding equality: 

i) To ensure that staff are given access to apprenticeships on a transparent and 
equitable basis.

ii) That external applicant recruitment to apprenticeships is carried out in line 
with SKDC’s recruitment processes.

5 Risk and Mitigation
5.1 SKDC needs to ensure that the Apprenticeship Levy is utilised to retain a mixture of 

supporting the continuous professional development of existing staff alongside recruitment 
of new employees into a variety of roles at different levels.  This will be managed through 
regular meetings with managers to develop opportunities and workforce / succession 
planning and management reviews.   

5.2 If the Apprenticeship Levy is unspent after two years, the funding is returned to Her 
Majesty’s Revenue and Customs.  In order to mitigate this SKDC is looking at a mixture of 
apprenticeships that support the corporate strategy and the future needs of the 
organisation.

6 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 
Council’s declaration of a ‘climate emergency’?

6.1 An increasing number of apprenticeships can now be delivered electronically. This 
reduces travel requirements and therefore the carbon footprint of those undertaking 
training and development. 

7 Other Implications (where significant) 
7.1 Not Applicable

8 Background Papers
8.1 Not Applicable

9 Appendices
9.1 Not Applicable

Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required)

Not applicable

Previously Considered by: Employment 
Committee

17 February 2020

Report Timeline: 

Final Decision date  18 March 2020

37



This page is intentionally left blank



Employment Committee
18 March 2020

Report of: Councillor Kelham Cooke

The Leader of the Council

        

Human Resources and Organisational Development 
Update
This report provides an overview of the current work programme for the Human Resources and 
Organisational Development and Change Teams.

Report Author

Elaine Pepper, Head of Organisational Development

01476 406132

e.pepper@southkesteven.gov.uk

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards:

Administrative Administrative All Wards

Reviewed by: Lee Sirdifield, Strategic Director for Transformation 
and Change 17 February 2020

Approved by: Gary Smith, Strategic Director, Commercial and 
Operations 21 February 2020

Signed off by: Councillor Kelham Cooke, The Leader of the Council 27 February 2020

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s)

That the Employment Committee:
1. Considers the following report of the Work Plan initiatives being undertaken by the 

Human Resources and Organisational Development and Change Teams.
2. Provides feedback on the initiatives being undertaken and makes recommendations 

on what initiatives they would like to see in more detail at the next Employment 
Committee.

39

Agenda Item 8

mailto:e.pepper@southkesteven.gov.uk


1 The Background to the Report
1.1 In 2019 the Organisational Development and Human Resources workplan was developed.  

It was designed to capture the priorities for the team going forward into 2019/2020 based 
on feedback from the staff via the staff survey and also incorporating the vision of the 
Corporate Strategy and the People and Organisational Development Strategy.

1.2 The workplan also considers and incorporates the Council’s values and behaviours: 
Accountability, Flexibility, Agility, Equity, Networking, Learning and Talent and also the 
themes of the People and Organisational Development Strategy:

 Attract the right people, retain and develop excellent skills, define and embed the right 
culture

 Effective leadership to encourage, inspire and navigate change

 Engaging and valuing our people in order to run our business effectively.
1.3 The purpose of the workplan is to: 

 continuously improve the service, year on year

 respond to the cultural work undertaken and the results of the staff survey

 provide a clear focus for the team, ensuring they work more effectively and that 
managers are responsible and accountable for all aspects of staff performance.

1.4 The workplan focuses on the following HR and OD initiatives.
1.5 Recruitment and Selection:

We have been undertaking a review of all aspects of the Recruitment and Selection 
process and procedures.  From the vacancy management procedure, to modernising job 
descriptions, adverts and the overall candidate experience.  Much of this work has been 
done and there is now a focus on our internal processes and procedures. There is an 
opportunity to not only streamline the processes for attracting, recruiting and selecting 
employees but also how we use our internal resources, skills and talent more flexibly.

1.6 Induction and Onboarding:
Currently, the induction process is applied inconsistently with new starters receiving 
varying levels of experiences based on how effective their line manager is. Our aim is for 
induction to be a refreshing change from what we currently offer by making it efficient, 
friendly and welcoming.  
New starters will receive an email containing interactive content - with welcome videos 
from the Chief Executive and Leader, a message from their SKDC buddy, a link to access 
their new starter paperwork at home, the Employee Handbook, FAQs and what to expect 
on their first day.
Line Managers will be encouraged to think differently about how they welcome new 
starters. We want to ensure the new starter feels welcomed and confident in their new role 
as soon as possible.  
The new process is in its final stages and will be rolled out to line managers shortly.

1.7 Wellbeing:
Following on from the feedback from the staff survey and information from sickness 
reporting, we have focused a lot of energy and time into improving wellbeing support. We 
have introduced trained Mental Health First Aiders, run a series of awareness days and 
have also provided Stress Awareness Training for staff. More of this is planned in the 
coming weeks due to the popularity of the activities completed to date. In October 2019 

40



we provided training for managers and workshops for staff on Menopause at Work and will 
continue to provide this year on year.
A small group of staff was formed just before Christmas to improve engagement and staff 
morale. The initial focus was to introduce a range of initiatives over the festive period, 
including the staff Christmas party, Christmas jumper day and events to raise money for 
charity. This group will now focus on events to be undertaken throughout the year. These 
will include initiatives such as Sports Relief, Wear it Pink and Jeans for Genes Days. In 
addition, there will also be a range of interactive staff events throughout the year. The 
programme of all the events will be communicated through Evolve.

1.8 Learning and Development:
There has been a focus on performance management, skills, talent and learning and 
development. A presentation will be provided by the Team Manager, Organisational 
Development and Change Team to outline our proposals and recommendations. 

1.9 Engagement:
We have undertaken Staff Surveys previously and considered the results and the action 
plan updates with the committee at regular stages. A further survey is planned in March 
and April 2020 to provide a refreshed understanding of the thoughts of staff, the culture of 
the organisation and the feedback regarding staff morale. This will enable consideration of 
any improvements that are required and ensure that we have an agreed action plan with 
appropriate accountability and commitment to delivering the improvements.

1.10 Pay and Reward: 
The current pay structure was implemented 15 years ago and was developed to meet 
affordability needs at the time. There are also a range of rewards and benefits available to 
staff which have been in place for some time and are not actively promoted.  The current 
pay and reward offer no longer meets SKDC’s ambitions and business needs. 

Part of the OD and Change workplan is a review of our pay and reward offer, which is an 
important element in attracting the right people and retaining and developing excellent 
skills.  This includes a full review of our pay scales, job evaluation and additional 
payments, together with a review of terms and conditions, promotion of rewards, both 
financial and non-financial.

External pay consultants are supporting us to develop options in respect of pay structure 
and the methods of determining pay.  In addition, proposals are being developed in 
respect of a more flexible reward package which meets the needs of both the Council and 
the workforce.

2 Financial Implications 
2.1 There are no financial implications arising directly from this report.

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance

3 Legal and Governance Implications 
3.1 A focus on an Organisational Development work plan is to be welcomed, as a positive and 

strong organisational culture drives performance improvements, better decision making 
and encourages accountability for decisions. An Organisational Development Plan should 
sit alongside and be coherent with the Corporate Plan, so the corporate objectives drive 
organisational development initiatives.
Legal Implications reviewed by: Shahin Ismail, Director of Law and Governance

41



4 Equality and Safeguarding Implications 
4.1 Equality and safeguarding implications are considered in detail for each of the work items. 

There are no implications directly resulting from this report. These will be assessed as 
individual items and proposals are considered by Employment Committee.

5 Risk and Mitigation
5.1 Not applicable

6 Other Implications (where significant) 
6.1 Not applicable

7 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 
Council’s declaration of a ‘climate emergency’?

7.1 The recommendations in this report have no carbon impact. 

8 Background Papers
8.1 Not applicable

9 Appendices
9.1 Appendix 1 - Learning and Development 2020/21 Presentation.

Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required)

Not required

Previously Considered by: Employment 
Committee

17 February 2020

Report Timeline: 

Final Decision date  18 March 2020

42



Learning & 
Development 43

A
ppendix 1



Looking back at 2019/20  

GDPR   

Cyber 
Security   

DSE & Fire 
Awareness     

Total 
number of 

staff 
attendance

544    

Online Training 

44



Staff Survey Results - November 2018  

• Learning & Development is valued but there is room for improvement

• Are opportunities applied and accessible consistently across SKDC?

• Is communication clear around what opportunities exist and where does accountability 
come into play?

45



Current Offer   

*Quarterly reviews with every service area

*Service specific training

*Mandatory training (GDPR / DSE / H&S)

*Corporate training Programmes (Talent, LA 
Challenge, YLAY)

*HR Business Partner Meetings 

*Onboarding 

*Ad hoc requests 

*Apprenticeships

Learning 
Organisation

? 

46



SMT 
Masterclasses 

Developing a Managerial 
Mindset 

Unleash Your 
Potential  

Apprenticeships 

First Time 
Management 
Programme

Mandatory 
Sessions 

Tailored learning paths 

Learning & 
Development 

SENIOR LEADERS MASTERS 
DEGREE APPRENTICESHIP / 
CHARTERED MANAGEMENT 

DEGREE APPRENTICESHIP   

Learning Foundations   

A learning organisation is a company 
that facilitates the learning of its 
employees and continuously transforms 
itself

Competitiveness,  Growth & Agility 

47



Mandatory Sessions 

Learning & 
Developing 
People 

Finance & 
Budgets 

Coaching & 
Mentoring 

Commerical 
Awareness 

Leading 
Change 

Leading 
across 
networks  

Mental 
Health 
Awareness

• These sessions would be delivered to ALL staff across the council prior to commencing the 
relevant learning path

• Delivery would take place throughout the year,  with a small break over the summer period  

• A CPD log would be used to capture attendance and certificates issued for each session  

48



Inspirational 
speakers 

Coaching & 
Mentoring 

Site visits Shadowing 
opportunities Ted Talks Networking 

opportunities 

9 box 
performance 

model   

Time 
Management  

Coaching 
circles 

IoT Ted Talks  Site visits  Office 365   
Project 

delivery
Networking 

opportunities 

Lean 6 
Sigma    

Agile PM
Problem 
solving  

Design 
Council 

Methods   

Project 
exposure

Networking 
opportunities 

Pe
o

p
le

 
Pe

rf
o

rm
an

ce
 &

 
P

ro
d

u
ct

iv
it

y 
Te

ch
n

o
lo

gy
 &

 
In

n
o

va
ti

o
n

 

P
ro

je
ct

s 
&

 
C

h
an

ge

Shadowing 
opportunities Ted Talks Networking 

opportunities 

Delivery Methods 

Learning Paths – All linked to corporate themes (growth, agility & competitiveness)  

Blended Approach 

49



Performance Management & Learning  

Why is it so important?

• Identification of high performers and talent

• Enables goal and target setting 

• Management and coaching 

• Link to reward and recognition 

• Leads to an empowered and engaged workforce 

• Helps to identify skills gaps and development needed for ALL individuals

• Link to recruiting, attracting and retaining talent 

50



Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Activity 

Q1 L&D Reviews Q2 L&D Reviews Q3 L&D Reviews Q4 L&D Reviews 

Service specific training Service specific training Service specific training Service specific training 

Mandatory Sessions & 
Learning paths 

Mandatory Sessions & 
Learning paths 

Mandatory Sessions & 
Learning Paths 

Mandatory Sessions & 
Learning paths 

Staff check In Staff Check In Staff Check In Staff Check In 

Performance Management Performance Management Performance Management Performance Management 

High Level Timeline 2020/21  

51



Staff check ins /  
1:1s / service reviews 

Performance 
Management  

Suite of learning delivered 
(mandatory,  learning path,  

specific programme)

Performance 
Management

Learning 
Cycle 

Identify 
Needs

Review
Deliver 

Learning 

Evaluate

Growth 

A
gility 

C
o

m
p

et
it

iv
en

es
s 

52



Employment 

Committee

Workplan

2020/21

53

A
genda Item

 9



Employment Committee Workplan

Meeting Date Work Item Time Constraint (where known)

1 February 2020 Pay Policy Report Annually 

2 March 2020 Gender Pay Gap – Results for 2019 and Update 

on Action Plan

Annually - Action Plan

3 March 2020 Managing Attendance – Sickness Stats Every 3 months/Every Employment 

Committee

4 March 2020 Apprentice Update Every 3 months/Every Employment 

Committee update

5 March 2020 HR Report to contain:- Every 3 months (one subject)/Every 

Employment CommitteeEmployment Committee

Induction and Onboarding 

Recruitment and Selection

Wellbeing

Learning and Development – update (followed 

by presentation)

Engagement – update on staff survey and plans 

for the future

Pay and Reward (including current Employee 

Benefits)

54



Agreed Workplan

Meeting Date Work Item Time Constraint (where known)

6 March 2020 Learning and Development Update 

(Presentation)

Annual Update

7 TBA Leadership Performance – Director 

Targets/CPD/Competency Framework

8 TBA Member Development (Plans/Budget) Sam Selby to present.

55



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the meeting held on 18 February 2020
	5 Gender Pay Gap
	Appendix 2 - Gender Pay Gap Action Plan

	6 Sickness absence statistics and analysis
	Appendix 1

	7 Apprenticeships at South Kesteven District Council
	8 Human Resources and Organisational Development Update
	Appendix 1 - Learning and Development Presentation

	9 Committee Workplan

